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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College 
Clovis, New Mexico and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, discretely presented 
component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clovis Community College (the College) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.  We have also audited the 
budgetary comparisons, presented as supplementary information, as defined by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, for the year ended June 30, 2019, as listed in the Table of Contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
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To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the College as of June 30, 2019 and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, in our opinion, the budgetary comparisons 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the budgetary comparisons for the year ended June 30, 
2019, in conformity with the budgetary basis of accounting prescribed by the New Mexico Administrative Code, 
and more fully described in the budgetary schedules, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion 
and analysis on pages 5 through 9 and the Schedule of the College’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
and the Schedule of College’s Contributions on pages 35 and 36 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the College’s basic financial statements and the budgetary comparisons.  The accompanying Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the 
Schedule of Deposit and Investment Accounts, Schedule of Pledged Collateral, Schedule of Joint Powers 
Agreements, Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities – Agency Fund, and the Schedule of Capital 
Outlay Appropriations, each required by Section 2.2.2. NMAC, and other information, such as the Introductory 
Section, which are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
 
 
The Schedule of Deposit and Investment Accounts, Schedule of Pledged Collateral, Schedule of Joint Powers 
Agreements, Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities – Agency Fund, Schedule of Capital Outlay 
Appropriations, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, each required by NMAC 2.2.2, are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
In our opinion, the Schedule of Deposit and Investment Accounts, Schedule of Pledged Collateral, Schedule of 
Joint Powers Agreements, Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities – Agency Fund, Schedule of 
Capital Outlay Appropriations, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, each required by NMAC 
2.2.2, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The Introductory Section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2019 on 
our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Jaramillo Accounting Group LLC (JAG) 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
October 29, 2019 
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Introduction 
 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of Clovis 
Community College (the College) for the year ended June 30, 2019.  This discussion should be read along with 
the accompanying financial statements and footnotes included therein.  Management has prepared the basic 
financial statements and related note disclosures along with this discussion and analysis.  The basic financial 
statements, notes, and this discussion, are the responsibility of the College management.  This management’s 
discussion and analysis (MD&A) includes comparative financial information for fiscal years 2018 and 2019. 
 
Overview of Financial Statements 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in 
business-type activities.  The College’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Included in the report is the Clovis Community College 
Foundation as a component unit for fiscal year 2019. 
 
Using the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, liabilities, and net position of the College as of the end of 
fiscal year 2019.  It is a point-in-time financial statement, the purpose of which is to give the readers a fiscal 
snapshot of the financial condition of the College.  The statement presents end-of-year data concerning current 
and non-current assets, current and non-current liabilities, and net position. 
 
Changes in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position are based on the activity presented 
in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  The purpose of this statement is to 
present the revenue received by the College as well as expenses, gains, and losses received or incurred by the 
College. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the inflows and outflows of cash, summarized by operating, capital, 
financing, and investing activities.  The statement is prepared using the direct method of cash flows, presenting 
gross amounts for the year’s activities. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
This financial report presents the basic financial statements of the College and its component unit, the Clovis 
Community College Foundation (the Foundation).  The College acts as the fiscal agent for the Foundation and is 
therefore considered financially accountable based on criteria set forth by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. 
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Condensed Financial Information – Summary of Net Position as of June 30: 
 

2019 2018
Assets
   Current Assets 11,076,416$    12,314,859$    
   Other Non-current Assets 282,500            282,500            
   Capital Assets, net 27,989,864      26,293,993      

   Total Assets 39,348,780      38,891,352      

Deferred Outflow of Resources 8,322,469         11,106,845      

Liabilities
   Current Liabilities 2,358,532         2,320,280         
   Other Non-current Liabilities 2,725,971         3,025,335         
   Net Pension Liability 31,893,739      30,764,303      

   Total Liabilities 36,978,242      36,109,918      

Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,104,171         478,173            

Net Position
   Net Investment in Capital Assets 24,964,529      23,113,658      
   Restricted 295,434            289,227            

   Unrestricted (deficit) (15,671,127)     (9,992,779)       

   Total Net Position 9,588,836$      13,410,106$    

 
Current assets include cash and other assets that are deemed to be consumed or convertible to cash within one 
year.  The most significant current asset of the College as of June 30, 2019 is the investment in the Local 
Government Investment Pool of $5,202,350.  Non-current assets include capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, of $27,989,864 and restricted investments in the Local Government Investment Pool of $282,500. 
 
Current liabilities are generally defined as amounts due within one year, and include accounts payable, payroll 
accruals, and accrued annual leave.  The energy performance contract (EPC) note payable is the largest non-
current liability of the College, totaling $2,700,335.  Annual debt service for the loan is $70,307 to $146,947 
through the year 2034. 
 
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the College’s financial position.  For the College, assets exceeded 
liabilities by $9,588,836 at the close of June 30, 2019 as compared to $13,410,106 as of June 30, 2018. 
 
At June 30, 2019, the College’s current ratio, the amount of current assets $11,076,416 available to cover 
current liabilities $2,358,532 was 4.70 to 1. 
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Condensed Financial Information – Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the 
years ended June 30: 

2019 2018

Operating Revenues by Major Source
    Grants and Contracts 7,287,662$         6,962,676$         
    Tuition and Fees 2,040,908           2,157,757           
    Other 579,648               262,745               
    Auxiliary Services 106,516               123,889               

   Total Operating Revenues 10,014,734         9,507,067           
Operating Expenses by Major Function

   Instruction 12,287,830         11,748,940         
   Student Aid 3,722,250           3,403,298           
   Institutional Support 2,633,230           2,518,308           
   Operation and Maintenance of Plant 1,738,017           1,816,261           
   Student Services 1,486,729           1,497,155           
   Depreciation 1,547,342           1,432,225           
   Academic Support 1,271,257           1,184,452           
   Public Service 1,364,857           1,331,500           
   Student Social & Cultural 112,553               89,929                 
   Auxiliary Services 18,588                 20,774                 
   Other Operating Expenses 332,321               19,398                 

   Total Operating Expenses 26,514,974         25,062,240         

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
   State Appropriation 9,630,477           9,369,156           
   Local Tax Levy 1,656,168           1,608,346           
   Investment Income, Net of Expenses 6,207                    18,702                 
   Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (5,532)                  (31,877)                
   Interest on Capital Asset Related Debt (13,983)                (17,874)                

Total Non-Operating Revenues 11,273,337         10,946,453         
Other – State Capital Appropriations 1,405,633           694,965               

Changes in Net Position (3,821,270)          (3,913,755)          

Net position, beginning of year 13,410,106         17,323,861         

Net position, end of year 9,588,836$         13,410,106$       

 
Revenues in the reporting model are shown by source of funding.  Operating revenues are generally defined as 
exchange transactions that are produced in the primary business functions of the College, including instruction, 
public service, and auxiliary services.  Non-operating revenues are generally defined as non-exchange 
transactions and include state appropriations, local tax levy, gifts, and interest income.  While classified as non-
operating revenue, state appropriations account for a vast majority of the College’s revenues and provide much-
needed support for the operation of the College. 
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Operating expenses for the College are presented in a functional format showing the major functions of the 
College, with expenditures for instruction and for the support of instruction representing a majority of operating 
expenses.  
 
Total net position (assets plus deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities minus deferred inflows of 
resources) is classified by the College’s ability to use those assets to meet operating needs. Net position that is 
restricted as to their use by sponsoring agencies or donors are classified as non-expendable (for example, 
permanent endowments) or expendable (contract or grant net position).  Unrestricted net position may be used 
to meet all operating needs of the College. 
 
General Budgetary Highlights 
 
During fiscal year 2019, the Board of Trustees and the New Mexico Higher Education Department approved 
budget adjustments to reflect final audited balances forward, and changes in additional revenue and 
expenditures. The change in net position (budgetary basis unrestricted – instructional and general) was 
$(1,848,952). 
 
Analysis of Overall Financial Position 
 
The overall financial position of the College is stable.  The College’s current ratio, the amount of current assets 
available to cover current liabilities, is 4.70 to 1.  The decrease in net position, as stated in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, is $(3,821,270).  This amount of decrease is primarily due 
to a State Appropriations funding and the recognition of an additional pension expense under GASB 68 in the 
amount of $4,539,810. 
 
The College is dependent upon ongoing financial and political support from state government.  For FY 2019, the 
New Mexico Higher Education appropriations increased.  Clovis Community College’s portion of this increase 
was $261,321.   
 
Expenditures have been conservative due to unknown State of New Mexico revenue.  New Mexico revenue is 
largely influenced by the price of crude oil and natural gas.  Other factors include, but may not be limited to, the 
overall New Mexico economy and the significant impact from the current economic state of the Nation’s 
economy.   
 
Factors Impacting Future Periods 
 
Clovis Community College experienced a 3% decrease in enrollment for FY 2019.  It is anticipated there will be a 
slight decline in enrollment from FY 2019 to FY 2020.  Most New Mexico Higher Education institutions have 
experienced significant decreases during this same time-period.    
 
Of major concern is the projected revenue in the State of New Mexico and the ability of the legislature to fund 
the appropriation formula for institutions of higher education in the state.   As a result of this, the College has 
been and will continue to be conservative in its fiscal management. 
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Clovis Community College was placed on the first available cycle for submission of the Application for Candidacy 
with CAPTE which was December 1, 2014.  Candidate for Accreditation is a pre-accreditation status, awarded 
prior to enrollment of students in the technical/professional phase of the program of entry-level physical 
therapist assistant education. The Commission on Accreditation in Physical Therapy Education (CAPTE) is the 
only accreditation agency recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE) and the Council for 
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA) to accredit entry-level physical therapist and physical therapist assistant 
education programs.  Candidacy was denied in April of 2015. The College requested expedited reconsideration 
of the application in May 2015; reconsideration was granted. CAPTE visited the campus in July 2015 and granted 
candidacy in August 2015.  The first cohort of Physical Therapy Assistant program students began with second 8-
week classes in October 2015.  The first cohort graduated in December 2016, with a total of nine students and 
six of those students passing the National Physical Therapy Exam on the first attempt.  Currently 100% of 
program graduates seeking employment were employed within one year of graduation. 
 
On February 22, 2018, the College entered into an energy performance contract (EPC) to replace and upgrade 
$2.7 million in physical plant infrastructure in order to keep facilities in good repair, in serviceable condition, 
able to provide environments conducive to learning, and energy efficient.  All remaining replacements and 
upgrades under the EPC were completed during the year ended June 30, 2019.  The lease/purchase debt to 
finance these projects will be repaid by the utility savings achieved through the infrastructure improvements. 
 
Component Unit 
 
Clovis Community College Foundation is included as a component unit and is discretely presented in the 
College’s financial statements.  The Foundation was established in 1997 to act primarily as a fundraising 
organization to supplement the resources that are available to the College.   
 
Requests for Information 
 
Questions concerning any of the financial information provided in this report or requests for additional 
information should be addressed to: 

 
Adrien L. Bennings PhD, Chief Financial Officer 

Clovis Community College 
417 Schepps Blvd. 

Clovis, New Mexico 88101 
575-769-2811



Primary Component Unit
Institution CCC Foundation

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,225,586$             153,110$                
Investments 5,202,350               3,267,895               
Receivables, net 1,572,235               -                                
Inventories 25,034                     -                                
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 51,211                     -                                

Total current assets 11,076,416             3,421,005               
Non-current Assets

Restricted investments 282,500                   -                                
Capital assets, net 27,989,864             37,000                     

Total non-current assets 28,272,364             37,000                     
Total assets 39,348,780             3,458,005               

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 8,322,469               -                                

 
LIABILITIES  
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 674,168                   -                                
Unearned revenue 984,025                   -                                
Compensated absences payable 400,975                   -                                
Current portion of long-term obligations 299,364                   -                                

Total current liabilities 2,358,532               -                                
Non-current Liabilities

Non-current portion of long-term obligations 2,725,971               -                                
Net pension liability 31,893,739             -                                

Total non-current liabilities 34,619,710             -                                
Total liabilities 36,978,242             -                                

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 1,104,171               -                                

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 24,964,529             37,000                     
Restricted
 Nonexpendable - Scholarships 282,500                   1,923,237               
 Expendable - Scholarships 12,934                     1,480,982               
Unrestricted (deficit) (15,671,127)            16,786                     

Total net position 9,588,836$             3,458,005$             

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

JUNE 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes. 10



 
Primary Component Unit

Institution CCC Foundation
OPERATING REVENUES

Student tuition and fees (net of discounts and
allowances of $1,637,386) 2,040,908$           -$                             

Federal grants and contracts 6,278,708              -                               
State grants and contracts 758,491                 -                               
Private grants and contracts 250,463                 -                               
Sales and services 106,516                 -                               
Other operating revenues 579,648                 -                               

Total operating revenues 10,014,734           -                               

OPERATING EXPENSES
Education and general

Instruction 12,287,830           -                               
Institutional support 2,633,230              -                               
Student services 1,486,729              -                               
Academic support 1,271,257              -                               
Public service 1,364,857              -                               
Student social and cultural 112,553                 -                               

Student aid (discounted) 3,722,250              -                               
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,738,017              -                               
Depreciation and amortization 1,547,342              -                               
Auxiliary enterprises 18,588                   -                               
Other operating expenses 332,321                 117,865                  

Total operating expenses 26,514,974           117,865                  

Operating loss (16,500,240)          (117,865)                

Non-operating revenues (expenses)  
State appropriations 9,630,477              -                               
Local tax levy 1,656,168              -                               
Investment Income, net of expenses 6,207                      290,151
Private gifts -                               74,010
Interest on capital asset related debt (13,983)                  -                               
Loss on disposal of capital assets (5,532)                    -                               

Total non-operating revenues 11,273,337           364,161                  

Other
Capital appropriations 1,405,633              -                               

(Decrease) increase in net position (3,821,270)            246,296                  

Net position, beginning of year 13,410,106           3,211,709              

Net position, end of year 9,588,836$           3,458,005$            
 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes. 11



Primary
Institution

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and fees 2,058,703$          
Grants and contracts 7,260,723             
Payments to suppliers, employees, and others (15,069,772)         
Payments for educational activities (3,722,250)           
Auxiliary enterprise charges (18,588)                 

Net cash used in operating activities (9,491,184)           

Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activities
Local tax levy revenues 1,646,479             
State appropriations 9,630,477             

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 11,276,956          

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (3,248,744)           
Payments on capital debt (155,000)               
General obligation bond appropriation 1,405,633             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,998,111)           

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment income, net of expenses 6,207                    

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (206,132)               
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,431,718             
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,225,586$          

 
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) TO 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss (16,500,240)$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 1,547,342             
Additional pension expense under GASB 68 4,539,810             
Change in assets and liabilities

Receivables 734,721                
Inventories (364)                      
Other assets 293,659                
Accounts payable and deferred liabilities (53,503)                 
Compensated absences 22,409                  
Unearned revenue (75,018)                 

Net cash used in operating activities (9,491,184)$         

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes. 12



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 25,268$            

Total assets 25,268$            

LIABILITIES
Due to student organizations 24,968$            
Accounts payable 300                    

Total liabilities 25,268$            

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUND
JUNE 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes. 13
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NOTE 1.    NATURE OF ACTIVITIES 
 
Clovis Community College was created by majority vote of the Curry County electorate on September 18, 1990. 
Formerly a branch campus of Eastern New Mexico University, Clovis Community College (the College) was 
reorganized under the state "Junior College Act" (i.e., Section 21-13-1 through 21-13-25 NMSA, 1978 
compilation, as amended). The purpose of the Junior College Act is to provide for the creation of local junior 
colleges and to extend the privilege of a basic vocational technological or higher education to all persons who 
are qualified to pursue the courses of study offered. The College is funded through appropriations from the 
State of New Mexico, local mill tax levy, and tuition and fees.  
 
The College is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of five members elected from single member districts 
within Curry County.  The Board's authority is established by state statute, specifically the 1985 Community 
College Act as amended.  The Board employs a President, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and a 
Chief Information Officer who are responsible for the management of the day-to-day control of the institution, 
including the hiring of administrative officers, faculty, and staff.  
 
The mission of the College is to provide accessible, affordable, accredited, high-quality educational opportunities 
by keeping the learners’ needs at the center of decision making. 
 
NOTE 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting.  For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government 
engaged in business-type activities. The financial statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and 
expenses are recorded when incurred.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. All significant intra-entity transactions have been eliminated.  
 
Basis of Presentation.  The College and its component unit present their financial statements in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed in applicable pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The statement presentation required by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, provides a comprehensive entity-wide perspective of the College’s 
assets, liabilities, and net position, revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows.  
 
The College has also adopted GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are 
Component Units — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus— an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 34. GASB Statement No. 39 
provides additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the College is not financially 
accountable should be reported as discretely presented component units based on the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the College.  GASB Statement No. 61 modifies certain requirements for inclusion of 
component units in the financial reporting entity and amends the criteria for blending component units within 
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NOTE 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
the primary government in certain circumstances. As required by GASB Statements No. 14, 39, and 61, these 
basic financial statements present the College and its component unit.  The College has only one component 
unit:  the Clovis Community College Foundation.    
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit.  The Clovis Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally 
separate, component unit of Clovis Community College.  The Foundation is a New Mexico non-profit corporation 
formed in 1997 to encourage, solicit, receive and administer gifts and bequests of property for the advancement 
of Clovis Community College. The Foundation is accounted for separately in the Basic Financial Statements of 
the College and has a June 30 fiscal year-end.  The Foundation is a non-profit corporation operating under 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is generally exempted from Federal income taxes.  Accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes is included in the financial statements.  The Foundation does not issue separate 
financial statements.  The Foundation does not have a legally adopted budget. 

 
Budgetary Process.  Operating budgets are submitted for approval to the Board of Trustees, the State of New 
Mexico Higher Education Department (HED), and the State Budget Division of the Department of Finance and 
Administration (DFA) and are prepared on a modified accrual basis, including capital outlay and retirement of 
indebtedness. Similarly, separate legislative budget requests are submitted to the Board of Trustees, HED and 
the DFA for inclusion in the State of New Mexico Executive Budget for consideration of appropriations by the 
state legislature. Total expenditures or transfers in each of these items of budgetary control may not exceed the 
amount shown in the approved budget:  A. unrestricted expenditures and restricted expenditures are 
considered separately; B. instruction and general; C. each budget function in current funds other than 
instruction and general; D. within the plant funds budget: major projects, library bonds, equipment bonds, 
minor capital outlay, renewals and replacements, and debt service; and E. each individual item of transfer 
between funds and/or functions. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents.  Cash and cash equivalents consist of all highly-liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. 
 
Capital Assets.  Capital assets are recorded at original cost, or fair value if donated. The College's capitalization 
policy for moveable equipment includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more per Section 12-6-10 NMSA 
1978 and an estimated useful life greater than one year. Renovations to buildings, infrastructure and land 
improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized. 
Information Technology Equipment, including software, is being capitalized and included in furniture, fixtures 
and equipment in accordance with NMAC 2.20.1.9C(5). Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operating expense in the year in which the expense was incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:  
 

Buildings and improvements 40 
Land improvements 20 
Library books 10 
Equipment        5-12  



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

 16 

NOTE 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources.  A consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a 
future reporting period. It has a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.  
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources.  An acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 
reporting period. It has a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities. 
 
Expenses.  The College’s expenses are classified as operating or non-operating according to the following 
criteria: 
 

Operating Expense.  Operating expenses include activities that have the characteristics of an exchange 
transaction, such as a) employee salaries, benefits, and related expenses; b) scholarships and fellowships, 
net of scholarship discounts and allowances; c) utilities, supplies, and other services; d) professional fees; 
and e) depreciation expenses related to College property, plant, and equipment.  
 
Non-operating Expense.  Non-operating expense include activities that have the characteristics of non-
exchange transactions, such as interest on capital-related debt and bond expenses that are defined as non-
operating expenses under the standards promulgated by the GASB.  

 
Inventories.  Inventories consist mainly of cosmetology items held for resale, valued at the lower of cost or 
market on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. 
 
Net Position.  The College’s net position is classified according to the following criteria: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets.  Net investment in capital assets represents the College’s total investment 
in capital assets, net of outstanding debt related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been 
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net 
investment in capital assets.  
 
Restricted Net position.  Restricted net position represents those operating funds on which external 
restrictions have been imposed that limit the purposes for which such funds can be used.  
 
Restricted Expendable Net Position.  Restricted expendable net position is resources that the College is 
legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with imposed restrictions by third parties.  
 
Restricted Nonexpendable Net Position.  Restricted nonexpendable net position consists of endowment 
and similar funds in which third parties have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the 
principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and invested for the purpose of producing present 
and future income.  The income generated from the principal may be expended or added to principal. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position.  Unrestricted net position, which may contain multiple year contractual 
commitments, consists of those operating funds over which the governing board retains full control to use in 
achieving any of its authorized purposes. 
 
When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the College's 
policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources, and then toward unrestricted resources.  
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NOTE 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the Educational Retirement Plan (ERP) and additions to/deductions from ERP’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by ERP. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Property Taxes.  Property taxes are levied on November 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on 
the previous January 1 and are due in two payments by November 10 and April 10.  Property taxes uncollected 
after November 10 and April 10 are considered delinquent.  The taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property 
thirty (30) days thereafter, at which time they become delinquent.  Property taxes are collected by Curry County 
and remitted monthly to the College. 
 
Receivables and Payables.  The College records student accounts receivable at the time a student registers for 
classes. Provisions for uncollectible student accounts are recorded to maintain adequate allowance for 
anticipated losses.  See Note 4 for segregation of accounts receivable.   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
consist of $575,568 in payroll and related tax liabilities and $98,600 in accounts payable to vendors. 
 
Revenues.  The College's revenues are classified as operating or non-operating according to the following 
criteria: 
 

Operating Revenues.  Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of an exchange 
transaction, such as a) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances; b) sales and 
services; and c) non-exchange transactions such as contracts and grants.  
 
Non-operating Revenues.  Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-
exchange transactions, such as a) appropriations; b) taxes; and c) investment income.  
 
Other Revenues.  Other revenues include capital appropriations from State of New Mexico General 
Obligation Bonds. 
 

Scholarship Allowance.  Student tuition and fee revenue are reported net of scholarship allowances in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  Scholarship allowances are the difference 
between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by 
students and/or third parties making payments on the students' behalf. Certain government grants, such as Pell 
grants, and other federal, state or non-governmental programs, are recorded as operating or non-operating 
revenue in the College's financial statements.  To the extent that revenue from such programs are used to 
satisfy tuition and fees, other student charges, and auxiliary enterprise charges the College has recorded a 
scholarship allowance.  
 
State Appropriations.  In accordance with New Mexico House Bill 2, in general, unexpended state 
appropriations do not revert to the State of New Mexico at the end of the fiscal year and are available to the 
College in subsequent years.  
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NOTE 2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Tax Status.  The income generated by the College is excluded from Federal income taxes under Section 115(a) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. The College is exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3). 
 
Unearned Revenue.  Unearned revenue consists primarily of advances from contracts and grants. Revenue is 
recognized to the extent expenses are incurred.  
 
Use of Estimates.  The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reported period.  Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.  
 
NOTE 3.    DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
For the College, deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest bearing checking accounts in one or 
more banks or savings and loan associations within the geographical boundaries of the College. Deposits may be 
made to the extent that they are insured by an agency of the United States or by collateral deposited as security 
or by bond given by the financial institution.  
 
The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bearing accounts shall be set by the State Board of Finance, but in 
no case shall the rate of interest be less than 100% of the asked price on United States treasury bills of the same 
maturity on the day of deposit.  
 
Excess of funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the United States 
government, or by their departments or agencies, and which are either direct obligations of the State or the 
United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of those governments.  
 
Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk – College and Foundation - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the College's or Foundation’s deposits may not be returned to it.  
 
The Bank pledges collateral against both the Foundation and the College and does not segregate the amounts 
between the two.  As of June 30, 2019, $4,389,118 of the College's and Foundation’s bank balances of 
$4,651,924 were exposed to custodial credit risk.  $4,389,118 of the bank balances were uninsured and 
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent, but not in the 
College's name and no amounts were uninsured and uncollateralized.  The Foundation’s bank balance is held 
under the College’s name. 
 
According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), public unit deposits are funds owned by the 
public unit. Time deposits, savings deposits and interest bearing negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts 
of a public unit in an institution in the same state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and separate from 
the $250,000 coverage for public unit demand deposits at the same institution.  
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NOTE 3.    DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Section 6-10-17, NMSA 1978, requires that all depositories provide collateral equal to at least one-half of the 
amount of public monies on deposit. The types of collateral allowed are limited to direct obligations of the 
United States Government and all bonds issued by any agency, district or political subdivision of the State of 
New Mexico. All depositories had collateral exceeding the amount required by law as shown in Schedule of 
Pledged Collateral. 
 
The sources of the component unit cash do not meet the definition of public monies.  Therefore, the component 
units are not required to follow State Statutes and no collateralization is required.  However, as noted above, 
the Foundation’s uninsured balances are collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution.  
 
Investments - College.  For the College, State statutes authorize the investment of funds in a wide variety of 
instruments including certificates of deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market 
accounts and United States Government obligations.  Management of the College is not aware of any 
investments that did not properly follow State investment requirements as of June 30, 2019.  
 
All investment decisions are approved by the Board.  As of June 30, 2019, the College had an investment balance 
totaling $5,484,850.  Through the approval of the Board of Directors for the College, the funds were invested in 
the New MexiGROW Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), which is managed by the State Treasurer.  These 
investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date.    
 
The State Treasurer New MexiGROW LGIP is not SEC registered. Section 6-10-10 I, NMSA 1978, empowers the 
State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance, to invest money held in the short-
term investment fund in securities that are issued by the United States government or its departments or 
agencies and are either direct obligations of the United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of the 
United States government or are agencies sponsored by the United States government. The LGIP investments 
are monitored by the same investment committee and the same policies and procedures that apply to all other 
state investments. The pool does not have unit shares.  Per Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each 
month all interest earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing entities in amounts directly 
proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the fund amounts were 
invested.  Participation in the local government investment pool is voluntary.  

 
Interest Rate Risk - College.  According to the State Treasurer’s LGIP investment policy, the pool shall be 
invested in order to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share. The weighted average maturity of 
investments in the pool shall not exceed 60 days. To limit the possibility of loss of principal due to interest 
rate fluctuations, the State Treasurer will make reasonable efforts to match investments with anticipated 
cash requirements and give particular emphasis to the following factors: Relative Yield to Maturity, 
Marketability, and Inter-market yield Analysis.  The College’s investments at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

Rating Fair Value Maturity
New Mexico LGIP AAAm 5,484,850$      35 day WAM(R) 112 day WAM (F)

Investment

 
 
Credit Rate Risk - College.  Under Section 59A-9-6, NMSA 1978, an insurer shall not invest in bonds rated 
below BAA by Moody’s Investment Service, Inc. or BBB by Standard & Poor’s, Inc.; as of June 30, 2019, the 
State Treasurer LGIP was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s, Inc.  
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NOTE 3.    DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Concentration Risk - College.  The College places no limit on the amount the College may invest in any one 
issuer.  At year-end, 100% of the College’s investments were held in the New MexiGROW LGIP. 
 
Investments – Foundation.  All Foundation investments are managed by the New Mexico State Investment 
Council (SIC).  In addition to fulfilling its primary role of managing the investments of the State’s Land Grant and 
Permanent Funds, the SIC also manages investments for approximately 20 third-party entities such as the Clovis 
Community College Foundation. 

 
At June 30, 2019, the Foundation was invested in both a large cap stock index pool and a bond index pool as 
described below:   
 

US Large Cap Index Pool.   This pool of stocks seeks to generate returns similar to the Russell 1000 index.  
82.99% of total Foundation funds with the SIC were invested in this pool at June 30, 2019. 
 
Core Plus Bonds Pool.  This pool of bonds seeks to exceed returns of the Barclay’s US Aggregate Bond Index 
through active external management using complementary core-plus strategies.  17.01% of total Foundation 
funds with the SIC were invested in this pool at June 30, 2019. 

 
The Foundation categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.   
 
The Foundation has the following recurring fair value measurements, valued at quoted market prices, as of 
June 30, 2019: 

Amount Percent
Investment in US Large Cap Index Pool 2,711,908$       82.99%
Core Plus Bonds Pool 555,987             17.01%

3,267,895$       100.00%

 
The Foundation’s investment in the US Large Cap Index Pool is a Level 1 investment.  The Foundation’s 
investment in the Core Plus Bonds Pool is a Level 2 investment. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments – Foundation.  For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counter party, the Foundation will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodian of the investments of the 
Foundation is a State of New Mexico department (New Mexico State Investment Council) created by legislation 
in 1958.  All investments are backed by marketable securities. 
 
Credit Risk – Investments - Foundation.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The Foundation does not have a policy on investment credit risk.  At 
June 30, 2019, the Foundation’s SIC investments are subject to credit risk; however, they are at the same risk as 
all investments held for the State of New Mexico. 
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NOTE 4.    RECEIVABLES, NET 
Primary 

Institution

Tuition and fees 1,333,052$       
Inactive tuition accounts 1,261,973         

Subtotal tuition and fees 2,595,025         
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,772,530)        

Tuition and fees, net of allowance 822,495             
Contracts and grants 684,072             
Due from state agency -                           
Due from a third party 15,303               
Property tax levy 39,571               
Accrued interest receivable 10,794               

Total receivables 1,572,235$       
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NOTE 5.    CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is summarized as follows:  
 

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,

2018 Additions Retirements 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 300,330$         $                      -  $                      - 300,330$        
Fine art             969,854                          -                          - 969,854          
Construction in progress         3,355,360             293,937       (2,623,104) 1,026,193       

Total capital assets not being   
depreciated         4,625,544             293,937       (2,623,104) 2,296,377       

Capital assets being depreciated:   
Buildings and improvements 36,282,014            5,434,680                          - 41,716,694    
Equipment 6,889,806                   134,767             (20,388) 7,004,185       
Library books         1,895,388                 8,464             (35,756) 1,868,096       
Land improvements         2,996,583                          -                          - 2,996,583       

Total other capital assets, at cost       48,063,791         5,577,911             (56,144) 53,585,558    

Less accumulated depreciation:    
Buildings and improvements    (18,038,865)          (937,280)                          - (18,976,145)   
Land improvements       (1,937,057)          (221,430)                          - (2,158,487)     
Equipment       (4,588,479)          (356,054)                 9,732 (4,934,801)     
Library books       (1,830,940)             (27,454) 35,756             (1,822,638)     

Total accumulated depreciation    (26,395,341)       (1,542,218)               45,488    (27,892,071)

Capital assets, net  $  26,293,994  $     4,329,630  $  (2,633,760)  $  27,989,864 

Capital asset summary   
Capital assets not being depreciated         4,625,544             293,937       (2,623,104) 2,296,377       
Other capital assets, at cost       48,063,791         5,577,911             (56,144) 53,585,558    

Total cost of capital assets       52,689,335         5,871,848       (2,679,248)       55,881,935 
Accumulated depreciation    (26,395,341)       (1,542,218)               45,488    (27,892,071)

Capital assets, net  $  26,293,994  $     4,329,630  $  (2,633,760) 27,989,864$  

Component unit – net capital assets  $           37,000 -$                      -$                      37,000$          
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,542,218. 



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

23 
 

NOTE 6.    NOTES PAYABLE 
 
On August 1, 2001, the College issued System Revenue Bonds in the principal amount of $2,290,000. The Bonds 
were issued for the purpose of constructing, improving, remodeling, furnishing and equipping the College's 
Library and Technology Center.  On July 8, 2011, the College refinanced the System Refunding Revenue Bonds 
through a note agreement with the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA).  The note is payable solely by 
pledged revenues from the College’s revenue producing facilities, gross proceeds or student tuition and fees, 
and certain other revenues devised from sources other than ad valorem taxation or appropriations.  As of 
June 30, 2019, the principal and interest to be paid on the NMFA note total $340,264.  The net effective interest 
rate on the note is 3.311%. 
 
On February 22, 2018, the College entered into an equipment lease purchase agreement (energy performance 
contract or EPC) for energy performance upgrades including: a solar photovoltaic array, water loop 
improvements, building envelope improvements, and lighting upgrades.  The utility cost avoidance of the energy 
performance upgrades is expected to offset the cost of debt.  Annual utility cost avoidance dollars have been 
pledged to pay down the annual debt service requirements.  As part of the EPC, guaranteed energy savings are 
in excess of the amount to pay the annual debt service requirements.  The aggregate principal outstanding at 
June 30, 2019 is $2,700,335 with interest of 3.69%.  The remaining principal and interest to be paid on the EPC 
note total $3,609,863. 
 
The detail of the notes payable are as follows: 

 June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
 Due Within 

One Year 

NMFA note  $        480,000 -$                 (155,000)$     $        325,000 160,000$        
EPC note         2,700,335 -                    -                             2,700,335 139,364          

Total bonds and notes payable  $    3,180,335  $                  -  $   (155,000)  $    3,025,335  $        299,364 
 

The annual requirements to amortize the notes payable outstanding including interest payments are as follows: 
 

 Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest

 Total Debt 
Service 

2020 299,364$           108,329$        407,693$        
2021 259,484             98,900            358,384          
2022 105,473             90,032            195,505          
2023 117,137             86,031            203,168          
2024 129,415             81,595            211,010          

2025-2030 1,067,940         368,777          1,436,717      
2031-2036 1,046,522         91,128            1,137,650      

3,025,335$       924,792$        3,950,127$    
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NOTE 7.    UNEARNED REVENUE 
 
Unearned revenue consists of summer and fall tuition revenue in the amount of $959,305 and advanced grant 
revenue of $24,720 at June 30, 2019. 
 
NOTE 8.    ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
College employees earn annual leave at various rates based upon type of employment and such leave may be 
accumulated to a maximum of 352 hours. Employees also earn sick leave at various rates based upon type of 
employment to a maximum accumulation of 1,040 hours.  Sick leave is not payable to the employee and is lost 
upon termination; therefore, no accrual is made for sick leave in the financial statements.  
 
The summary of changes in compensated absences is as follows: 

 June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
 Due Within 

One Year 

Compensated absences payable  $        378,566 269,974$        (247,565)$       $        400,975  $        400,975 

 
NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD 
 
Plan Description.  The New Mexico Educational Retirement Act (ERA) was enacted in 1957. The act created the 
Educational Employees Retirement Plan (Plan) and, to administer it, the New Mexico Educational Retirement 
Board (NMERB).  The Plan is included in NMERB’s comprehensive annual financial report. The report can be 
found on NMERB’s Web site at https://www.nmerb.org/Annual_reports.html. 
 
The Plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer pension plan established to provide retirement and disability 
benefits for certified teachers and other employees of the state’s public schools, institutions of higher learning, 
and state agencies providing educational programs.  Additional tenets of the ERA can be found in Section 22-11-
1 through 22-11-52, NMSA 1978, as amended.    
 
The Plan is a pension trust fund of the State of New Mexico. The ERA assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions to a seven-member Board of Trustees (Board); the state legislature has the authority 
to set or amend contribution rates and other terms of the plan. NMERB is self-funded through investment 
income and educational employer contributions.  The Plan does not receive General Fund Appropriations from 
the State of New Mexico. 
 
All accumulated assets are held by the Plan in trust to pay benefits, including refunds of contributions as defined 
in the terms of the Plan.  Eligibility for membership in the Plan is a condition of employment, as defined in 
Section 22-11-2, NMSA 1978.  Employees of public schools, universities, colleges, junior colleges, technical-
vocational institutions, state special schools, charter schools, and state agencies providing an educational 
program, who are employed more than 25% of a full-time equivalency, are required to be members of the Plan, 
unless specifically excluded. 
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Pension benefit.   A member's retirement benefit is determined by a formula which includes three component 
parts: 1) the member's final average salary (FAS), 2) the number of years of service credit, and 3) a 0.0235 
multiplier.  The FAS is the average of the member's salaries for the last five years of service or any other 
consecutive five-year period, whichever is greater.  
 
Summary of Plan Provisions for Retirement Eligibility.  For members employed before July 1, 2010, a member is 
eligible to retire when one of the following events occurs:  
 

 The member's age and earned service credit add up to the sum of 75 or more,  
 

 The member is at least 65 years of age and has five or more years of earned service credit, or  
 

 The member has service credit totaling 25 years or more. 
 
Chapter 288, Laws of 2009 changed the eligibility requirements for new members first employed on, or after, 
July 1, 2010 and before July 1, 2013.  The eligibility for a member who either becomes a new member on or after 
July 1, 2010 and before July 1, 2013, or at any time prior to July 1, 2010 was refunded all member contributions 
and then becomes re-employed after July 1, 2010 is as follows: 
 

 The member's age and earned service credit add up to the sum of 80 or more,  
 

 The member is at least 67 years of age and has five or more years of earned service credit, or 
 

 The member has service credit totaling 30 years or more. 
 
Section 2-11-23.2, NMSA 1978 added eligibility requirements for new members who were first employed on or 
after July 1, 2013, or who were employed before July 1, 2013 but terminated employment and subsequently 
withdrew all contributions and returned to work for an ERB employer on or after July 1, 2013.  These members 
must meet one of the following requirements: 
 

 The member's minimum age is 55 and has earned 30 or more years of service credit.  Those who retire 
earlier than age 55, but with 30 years of earned service credit will have a reduction in benefits to the 
actuarial equivalent of retiring at age 55. 

 
 The member's minimum age and earned service credit add up to the sum of 80 or more.  Those who 

retire under the age of 65, and who have fewer than 30 years of earned service credit will receive 
reduced retirement benefits. 

 
 The member's age is 67 and has earned 5 or more years of service credit. 

 
Forms of Payment.  The benefit is paid as a monthly life annuity with a guarantee that, if the payments made do 
not exceed the member's accumulated contributions plus accumulated interest, determined as of the date of 
retirement, the balance will be paid in a lump sum to the member's surviving beneficiary. 
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Benefit Options.  The Plan has three benefit options available: 
 

 Option A – Straight Life Benefit.  The single life annuity option has no reductions to the monthly benefit, 
and there is no continuing benefit due to a beneficiary or estate, except the balance, if any, of member 
contributions plus interest less benefits paid prior to the member’s death.  
 

 Option B – Joint 100% Survivor Benefit.  The single life annuity monthly benefit is reduced to provide 
for a 100% survivor’s benefit. The reduced benefit is payable during the life of the member, with the 
provision that, upon death, the same benefit is paid to the beneficiary for his or her lifetime.  If the 
beneficiary predeceases the member, the member’s monthly benefit is increased to the amount the 
member would have received under Option A Straight Life benefit.  The member’s increased monthly 
benefit commences in the month following the beneficiary’s death.  

 
 Option C – Joint 50% Survivor Benefit.  The single life annuity monthly benefit is reduced to provide for 

a 50% survivor’s benefit. The reduced benefit is payable during the life of the member, with the 
provision that, upon death, the reduced 50% benefit is paid to the beneficiary for his or her lifetime.  If 
the beneficiary predeceases the member, the member’s monthly benefit is increased to the amount the 
member would have received under Option A Straight Life benefit.  The member’s increased monthly 
benefit commences in the month following the beneficiary’s death. 
 

Disability Benefit.  An NMERB member is eligible for disability benefits if they have acquired at least ten years of 
earned service credit and is found totally disabled.  The disability benefit is equal to 2% of the member’s Final 
Average Salary (FAS) multiplied by the number of years of total service credits.  However, the disability benefit 
shall not be less than the smaller of (a) one-third of the member’s FAS or (b) 2% of the member’s FAS multiplied 
by total years of service credit projected to age 60.  
 
Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).  All retired members and beneficiaries receiving benefits receive an 
automatic adjustment in their benefit on July 1 following the later of 1) the year a member retires, or 2) the year 
a member reaches age 65 (Tier 1 and Tier 2) or age 67 (Tier 3).   
 

 Tier 1 membership is comprised of employees who became members prior to July 1, 2010  
 

 Tier 2 membership is comprised of employees who became members after July 1, 2010, but prior to 
July 1, 2013  
 

 Tier 3 membership is comprised of employees who became members on or after July 1, 2013  
 
As of July 1, 2013, for current and future retirees the COLA is immediately reduced until the Plan is 100% 
funded.  The COLA reduction is based on the median retirement benefit of all retirees excluding disability 
retirements.  Retirees with benefits at or below the median and with 25 or more years of service credit will have 
a 10% COLA reduction; their average COLA will be 1.5%.  Once the funding is greater than 90%, the COLA 
reductions will decrease.  The retirees with benefits at or below the median and with 25 or more years of service 
credit will have a 5% COLA reduction; their average COLA will be 1.7%. 
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Members on disability retirement are entitled to a COLA commencing on July 1 of the third full year following 
disability retirement.  A member on regular retirement who can prove retirement because of a disability may 
qualify for a COLA beginning July 1 in the third full year of retirement.  
 
Refund of Contributions.  Members may withdraw their contributions only when they terminate covered 
employment in the State and their former employer(s) certification determination has been received by NMERB.  
Interest is paid to members when they withdraw their contributions following termination of employment at a 
rate set by the Board.  Interest is not earned on contributions credited to accounts prior to July 1, 1971, or for 
contributions held for less than one year. 
 
Contributions.  For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, educational employers contributed to the Plan 
based on the following rate schedule. 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

 Date Range  Wage 
Category 

 Member 
Rate 

 Employer 
Rate 

 Combined 
Rate 

 Increase Over 
Prior Year 

2019  7-1-18 to 6-30-19  Over $20K  10.70%  13.90%  24.60%  0.00% 
2019  7-1-18 to 6-30-19  $20K or less  7.90%  13.90%  21.80%  0.00% 
2018  7-1-17 to 6-30-18  Over $20K  10.70%  13.90%  24.60%  0.00% 
2018  7-1-17 to 6-30-18  $20K or less  7.90%  13.90%  21.80%  0.00% 
 
The contribution requirements are established in statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The 
requirements may be amended by acts of the New Mexico Legislature.  For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 
and 2018, the College paid employer contributions of $1,070,617 and $1,042,447, respectively, which equal the 
amount of the required contributions for each fiscal year. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions.  At June 30, 2019, the College reported a liability of $31,893,739 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. 
The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan year ending June 30, 2018 
using generally accepted actuarial principles. The roll-forward incorporates the impact of the new assumptions 
adopted by the ERB Board on April 21, 2017. There were no other significant events of changes in benefit 
provisions that required an adjustment to the roll-forward liabilities as of June 30, 2018.  Therefore, the 
College’s portion was established as of the measurement date of June 30, 2018.  The College’s proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the College‘s long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating educational institutions, actuarially determined.  
At June 30, 2018, the College’s proportion was 0.26821%, which was a decrease of 0.00861% from its proportion 
measured at June 30, 2017.   
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the College recognized pension expense of $4,539,810.  At June 30, 2019, the 
College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual 
experience 23,277$            606,989$         

Changes of assumptions 6,573,149        -                         
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 70,605              -                         
Changes in proportion and differences between

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 584,821            497,182            
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,070,617        -                         

Total 8,322,469$      1,104,171$       
 
$1,070,617 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the College’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2018 will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.   Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30,
2019 3,881,242$         
2020 2,418,080            
2021 (152,570)              
2022 929                        
2023 -                             

Thereafter -                              
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following significant actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.25% composed of 2.50% inflation, plus a 0.75% productivity increase

rate, plus a step-rate promotional increase for members with less than 10 
years of service.

Investment rate of return 7.25% compounded annually, net of expenses. This is made up of a 2.50%
inflation rate and a 4.75 real rate of return.

Average of expected           Fiscal year                       2018     2017     2016     2015     2014
remaining service lives           Service life in years      3.56      3.65      3.77      3.92     3.88

Mortality Healthy males: Based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
with White Collar adjustments, not set back. Generational mortality
improvements with Scale BB from the table’s base year of 2000.
Healthy females: Based on GRS Southwest Region Teacher Mortality
Table, set back one year. Generational mortality improvements in
accordance with Scale BB from the table’s base year of 2012.
Disabled males: RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for males, set back
three years, projected to 2016 with Scale BB.
Disabled females : RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for females, no set
back, projected to 2016 with Scale BB.
Active members:  RP-2000 Employee Mortality Tables, with males set back 
two years and scaled at 80%, and females set back five years and scaled
at 70%. Static mortality improvement from the table’s base year of 2000
to the year 2016 in accordance with Scale BB. No future improvement was 
assumed for preretirement mortality.

Retirement age Experience-based table rates based on age and service, adopted by the
NMERB Board on April 21, 2017 in conjunction with the six-year
experience study for the period ending June 30, 2016.

Cost-of-living increases 1.90% per year, compounded annually; increases deferred until July 1
following the year a member retires, or the year in which a member
attains the age of 65 (67 for Tier 3), whichever is later or, for disabled
retirees, until July 1 of the third year following retirement.

Payroll growth 3.00% per year (with no allowance for membership growth).
Contribution accumulation The accumulated member account balance with interest is estimated at

the valuation date by assuming that member contributions increased
5.50% per year for all years prior to the valuation date. Contributions are
credited with 4.00% interest, compounded annually, applicable to the
account balances in the past as well as the future.

Disability incidence Approved rates are applied to eligible members with at least 10 years of
service.  
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NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial assumptions and methods are set by the Plan’s Board of Trustees, based upon recommendations made 
by the Plan’s actuary. The Board adopted new assumptions on April 21, 2017 in conjunction with the six-year 
actuarial experience study period ending June 30, 2016. At that time, the Board adopted several economic 
assumption changes, including a decrease in the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.50%. The 0.50% decrease 
in the inflation assumption also led to decreases in the nominal investment return assumption from 7.75% to 
7.25%, the assumed annual wage inflation rate from 3.75% to 3.25%, the payroll growth assumption from 3.50% 
to 3.00%, and the annual assumed COLA from 2.00% to 1.90%.   
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
approach that includes the following: 
 

 Rate of return projections that are the sum of current yield plus projected changes in price (valuations, 
defaults, etc.) 

 Application of key economic projections (inflation, real growth, dividends, etc.) 
 Structural themes (supply and demand imbalances, capital flows, etc.) developed for each major asset 

class. 

Long-Term
Target Expected

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Equities 33%
Fixed income 26%
Alternatives 40%
Cash 1%

100% 7.25%  
 

Discount rate.  A single discount rate of 5.69% was used to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 
2018. This rate is .21% less than the 5.90% discount rate used for June 30,2017. 
 
The June 30, 2018 single discount rate was based on a long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.25%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.62%, net of expense. Based on the stated assumptions and 
the projection of cash flows, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to 
finance the benefit payments through the year 2050.  As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the 2050 fiscal year, and the 
municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit payments after that date. 
 
The projections of cash flows used to determine the June 30, 2018 single discount rate assumed that plan 
member and employer contributions will be made at the current statutory levels. Additionally, contributions 
received through Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) are included in the projection of cash flows.  ARP 
contributions are assumed to remain at a level percentage of ERB payroll, where the percentage of payroll is 
based on the most recent five-year contribution history. 
 



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

31 
 

NOTE 9.    PENSION PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Sensitivity of the Employer Name’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate.  The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 5.69%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.69%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (6.69%) than the current rate. 

Current 
1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1 % Increase

4.69% 5.69% 6.69%
College's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability 41,449,645$       31,893,739$       24,096,716$        
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in separately issued NMERB’S financial reports. The reports can be found on NMERB’s Web site at 
https://www.nmerb.org/Annual_reports.html 
 
NOTE 10.    ALTERNATIVE RETIREMENT PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD 
 
Alternative Retirement Plan – Effective October 1991, the New Mexico legislature established an Alternative 
Retirement Plan (ARP) through the enactment of ERA Sections 22-11-47 through 52 NMSA 1978 to provide 
eligible employees an election to establish an alternative retirement investment plan. In contrast to the defined 
benefit plan administered by NMERB, the ARP is a defined contribution plan. NMERB is the trustee of the ARP 
which is administered by two third-party contractors for NMERB. The two administrators approved to offer ARP 
plans to eligible participants are Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund 
(TIAA-CREF), and Fidelity Investments.  
 
These administrators have the authority to perform record keeping, enrollment education services, and other 
administrative duties for the ARP.  The administrators are delegated any and all powers as may be necessary or 
advisable to discharge their duties under the ARP and have certain discretionary authority to decide matters 
under the ARP.  As the ARP trustee NMERB is responsible for selecting investment options that provide a 
prudent rate of return, and to ensure that all investments, amounts, property, and rights under the executed 
Plan-Trust are held for the exclusive benefit of Plan participants and their beneficiaries, as defined in the Plan 
Document.  
 
Eligibility – Certain employees of the University of New Mexico, New Mexico State University, New Mexico 
Institute of Mining and Technology, New Mexico Highlands University, Eastern New Mexico University, Western 
New Mexico University, Central New Mexico Community College, Clovis Community College, Luna Community 
College, Mesalands Community College, New Mexico Junior College, Northern New Mexico College, San Juan 
College and Santa Fe Community College are eligible to make an election to participate within ninety days of 
employment. Information about the ARP is distributed by the employer. Those who do not elect to participate in 
the ARP remain members of the regular defined benefit retirement plan.  
 
Section 22-11-47(D) NMSA 1978 allows an ARP participant a one-time option to make an irrevocable switch to 
the defined benefit retirement plan after seven years of ARP participation. 
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NOTE 10.    ALTERNATIVE RETIREMENT PLAN – EDUCATION RETIREMENT BOARD (CONTINUED) 
 
Form of Payment - Retirement, death, and other benefits are based upon contributions made and earnings 
accumulated on those contributions, in accordance with the terms of the applicable vendor contracts and 
Internal Revenue Service Code. Retirement benefits shall, at the option of the employee, be paid: 
 

 In the form of a lifetime income, if held in an annuity contract, 
 Payments for a term of years, or  
 A single-sum cash payment. 

 
ARP retirement, death, and other benefits, including disability benefits, cannot be paid from the funds 
administered by NMERB.  
 
ARP Contributions.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, colleges and universities contributed 10.90% of 
participating employees’ gross salary to the ARP vendor on behalf of the participant, and 3% of the employees’ 
gross salary to NMERB. The colleges and universities are responsible for submitting the balance of the 
employers’ contribution, and the employees’ contributions directly to the ARP vendors.  
 
Employees participating in the ARP do not accrue rights to benefits in the defined benefit pension plan based on 
the 3% contributions to the Plan.    
 
Employer contributions to NMERB include amounts remitted on behalf of both the ARP defined contribution 
plan and the defined benefit plan.  The 3% contribution remitted by the College for fiscal years ended June 30, 
2019 and 2018 were $16,931 and $14,295, respectively. 
 
NOTE 11.    RETIREE HEALTHCARE 
 
The College contracts with a third-party insurer (Blue Cross Blue Shield).  The College does not have a firm 
commitment to fund retiree healthcare and could be discontinued at any time.  As described in the Staff 
Handbook, once an employee retires from ERB, they are eligible to participate (and must elect to participate in 
the system before actual retirement).  The College currently pays 60% of the retiree health care for the retired 
employee and their spouse.   Once the retired employee or spouse turns 65, the College currently pays for 60% 
of Medicare Part B.  Total expenditures for retiree healthcare for years ending June 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017 
were $308,250, $258,573, and $243,285, respectively.     
 
As the College may choose to discontinue paying for retiree healthcare insurance at any time, it therefore does 
not have firm commitment to continue to the Retiree Health Care.  Accordingly, there is no accrual for unfunded 
liability for retiree healthcare.    
 
NOTE 12.    CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
The College participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants 
received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate 
grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to non-compliance with grant program regulations, the 
College may be required to reimburse the grantor government.  As of June 30, 2019, significant amounts of 
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NOTE 12.    CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
grant expenditures have not been audited by the grantor agencies. Management believes that disallowed 
expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on the overall financial 
position of the College. 
 
NOTE 13.    TAX-DEFERRED ANNUITY PLAN 
 
The College provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC). The plan is available to employees who normally work 20 hours or more per week. The College does not 
contribute to the plan. Employees may make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by 
the IRC. 
 
NOTE 14.    RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
At June 30, 2019, the College had no workman’s compensation claims outstanding.   At June 30, 2019, there are 
no other litigation, claims or assessments against the College.  The College has property and liability insurance 
coverage with Zurich Insurance Group, LTD. and workers compensation insurance coverage with Mountain 
States Mutual.  The College has not filed any claims wherein the settlement amount exceeded the insurance 
coverage during the past three years.  However, should a claim be filed against the College which exceeds the 
insurance coverage, the College would be responsible for a loss in excess of the coverage amounts.  
 
NOTE 15.   TAX ABATEMENTS 
 
Abatements of Other Governments. The College is subject to tax abatements granted by the City of Clovis 
through the Industrial Revenue Bond Act.  This program has the stated purposes of promoting industry and 
trade other than retail trade in the county and municipalities. 
 
Industrial Revenue Bonds. Under the Industrial Revenue Bond Act [3-32 NMSA 1978], the city council can vote 
to induce an industrial revenue bond in order to induce a manufacturing, industrial, or commercial enterprise to 
locate or expand in that region, by financing a specified project. The city may include in the agreement a 
stipulation of an amount or a percentage reduction of property taxes, which can be as much as 100%.  This 
reduction or exemption is applicable for the life of the bond issue, not to exceed thirty years from the date the 
bonds were issued and is a significant benefit for borrowers that would not otherwise qualify for a property tax 
exemption under other constitutional or statutory provisions. Information relevant to disclosure of those 
programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 follows: 
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NOTE 15.   TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Agency number for Agency making the disclosure
(Abating Agency) #6038
Abating Agency Name City of Clovis
Abating Agency Type Municipality
Tax Abatement Agreement Name Industrial Revenue Bond
Name of agency affected by abatement agreement
(Affected Agency) Clovis Community College
Agency number of Affected Agency #980
Agency type of Affected Agency Community College
Recipient(s) of tax abatement Southwest Cheese
Tax abatement program (name and brief
description)

Industrial Revenue Bond - 100% Tax Abatement with Payment In Lieu
of Taxes to School District/Foundation

Specific Tax(es) being Abated Real and Personal Property Taxes
Authority under which abated tax would have been
paid to Affected Agency State of New Mexico Industrial Revenue Bond Act
Gross dollar amount, on an accrual basis, by which
the Affected Agency's tax revenues were reduced
during the reporting period as a result of the tax
abatement agreement $201,966
For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTs) or similar
payments receivable by the Affected Agency in
association with the foregone tax revenue, list the
amount of payments received in the current fiscal
year $27,948 Payment in Lieu of Taxes
If the Abating Agency is omitting any information
required in this spreadsheet or by GASB 77, cite the
legal basis for such omission None Omitted
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Fiscal Year 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Measurement Date 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

College's proportion of the net pension liability 0.26821% 0.27682% 0.25754% 0.25719% 0.25138%

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability 31,893,739$     30,764,303$   18,533,695$    16,658,881$    14,343,057$   

College's covered-employee payroll 7,594,217$      7,396,769$     7,792,704$     7,250,156$     7,313,991$     

College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 419.97% 415.92% 237.83% 229.77% 196.10%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
 total pension liability 52.17% 52.95% 61.58% 63.97% 66.54%

*Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 requires ten years of historical information be presented; however, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the statement only requires presentation of information for those years that information is available. Complete
information for the College is not available prior to fiscal year 2015, the year the statement’s requirements became effective.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
NEW MEXICO EDUCATIONAL RETIREMENT BOARD (ERB) PENSION PLAN

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 - 2015
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* (UNAUDITED)
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutory required contributions 1,070,617$    1,042,447$    1,096,459$    1,022,377$    1,015,832$    

Contribution in relation to the statutorily required
contributions (1,070,617)$   (1,042,447)$   (1,096,459)$   (1,022,377)$   (1,015,832)$   

Annual contribution deficiency -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

June 30,

*Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 requires ten years of historical information be presented; however, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the statement only requires presentation of information for those years that information is available.
Complete information for the College is not available prior to fiscal year 2015, the year the statement’s requirements became effective.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE’S CONTRIBUTIONS
NEW MEXICO EDUCATIONAL RETIREMENT BOARD (ERB) PENSION PLAN

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 - 2015
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* (UNAUDITED)

See Notes to Required
Supplementary Information. 36
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ERB PLAN 
 
Changes in benefit provisions. There were no modifications to the benefit provisions that were reflected in the 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.  
 
Changes in assumptions and methods. There were no modifications to the actuarial assumptions and methods 
reflected in the actuarial valuation at June 30, 2018. 
 



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Actual
Original Final (Over) Under
Budget Budget Actual Budget

Beginning net position 5,497,844$     8,689,707$      8,689,707$       -$                      

REVENUES
State government appropriations 9,544,249        11,071,634      11,036,110       35,524             
Federal revenue sources 8,851,902        8,913,499        6,278,708          2,634,791        
Tuition and fees 3,639,249        3,643,249        3,678,304          (35,055)            
Endowments and private gifts 254,000           271,400            250,463             20,937             
Other sources 2,833,750        2,810,334        3,107,030          (296,696)          

   Total revenues 25,123,150     26,710,116      24,350,615       2,359,501        

EXPENDITURES  
Instruction 8,502,041        8,716,749        7,748,020          968,729           
Academic support 1,371,248        1,394,008        1,271,257          122,751           
Student services 1,595,364        1,624,432        1,486,729          137,703           
Institutional support 2,905,335        2,946,965        2,633,230          313,735           
Operation and maintenance of plant 2,029,154        2,033,058        1,738,017          295,041           

   Total instruction and general 16,403,142     16,715,212      14,877,253       1,837,959        
Student social and cultural activities 94,800             122,100            112,553             9,547                
Public service 1,816,994        1,849,454        1,364,857          484,597           
Student aid, grants and stipends 7,599,982        7,627,382        5,359,646          2,267,736        
Auxiliary services 40,000             40,000              18,588               21,412             
Capital outlay 620,572           3,311,573        3,248,744          62,829             
Building renewal and replacement 302,434           1,086,434        332,321             754,113           
Retirement of indebtedness and 

refunding expense 269,204           267,984            168,983             99,001             
   Total expenditures 27,147,128     31,020,139      25,482,945       5,537,194        

Net transfers -                        -                         -                          -                        

Change in net position - budgetary basis (2,023,978)      (4,310,023)       (1,132,330)        (3,177,693)      

Ending net position 3,473,866$     4,379,684$      7,557,377$       (3,177,693)$    

Under Title 5 of the New Mexico Administrative Code, Chapter 3, Part 4, Paragraph 10 - Items of Budgetary
Control: The total expenditures in each of the following budgetary functions will be used as items of budgetary
control. Total expenditures or transfers in each of the following items of budgetary control may not exceed the
amounts shown in the approved budget: A. Unrestricted expenditures and restricted expenditures; B.
Instruction and general; C. Each budget function in current funds other than instruction and general; D. Within
the plant funds budget: major projects, library bonds, equipment bonds, minor capital outlay, renewals and
replacements, and debt service; and E. Each individual item of transfer between funds and/or functions. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - 
UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED - ALL OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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Actual
Original Final (Over) Under
Budget Budget Actual Budget

Beginning net position 2,538,160$     4,538,247$      4,538,247$       -$                      

REVENUES
Tuition 3,395,069        3,399,069        3,445,399          (46,330)            
State government appropriations 9,544,249        9,544,249        9,630,477          (86,228)            
Local government appropriations 1,400,000        1,400,000        1,656,168          (256,168)          
Federal government contracts and grants 2,000                2,000                11,506               (9,506)              
Other sources 162,503           162,503            262,415             (99,912)            

Total revenues 14,503,821     14,507,821      15,005,965       (498,144)          
 

EXPENDITURES
Instruction 7,575,445        7,753,718        6,892,525          861,193           
Academic support 1,371,248        1,394,008        1,273,950          120,058           
Student services 1,595,364        1,624,432        1,489,979          134,453           
Institutional support 2,905,335        2,946,965        2,633,230          313,735           
Operation and maintenance of plant 2,029,154        2,033,058        1,738,017          295,041           

Total expenditures 15,476,546     15,752,181      14,027,701       1,724,480        

Net transfers 504,592           604,592            604,592             -                        

Change in net position - budgetary basis (1,477,317)      (1,848,952)       373,672             (2,222,624)      

Ending net position 1,060,843$     2,689,295$      4,911,919$       (2,222,624)$    
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CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - 
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Actual
Original Final (Over) Under
Budget Budget Actual Budget

Beginning net position -$                      27,479$            27,479$             -$                      

REVENUES
Federal contracts and grants 794,596           798,502            706,843             91,659             
State contracts and grants 132,000           132,000            71,963               60,037             

Total revenues 926,596           930,502            778,806             151,696           

EXPENDITURES
Instruction 926,596           957,981            779,265             178,716           
Academic Support -                        -                         -                          -                        

Total expenditures 926,596           957,981            779,265             178,716           

Net transfers -                        -                         -                          -                        

Change in net position - budgetary basis -                        (27,479)             (459)                   (27,020)            

Ending net position -$                      -$                       27,020$             (27,020)$          

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - 
RESTRICTED - INSTRUCTIONAL AND GENERAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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Revenues Expense Net

Budget basis revenues (expense) 24,350,615$    25,482,945$     (1,132,330)$    
Additional (GASB 68) pension expense -                         4,539,810          (4,539,810)      
Capital expenditures -                         (3,248,744)        3,248,744        
Depreciation and amortization -                         1,547,342          (1,547,342)      
Scholarship allowance (1,637,396)       (1,637,396)        -                        
Loss and disposal of assets -                         5,532                 (5,532)              
Payment of principal on debt -                         (155,000)            155,000           

GAAP basis revenue (expense) 22,713,219$    26,534,489$     (3,821,270)$    

 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
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RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

People's
Type NM Bank and Security BOK

Account Name of Account Trust Bank Financial Total

Deposits
General account Checking 6,632$                -$                        -$                        6,632$               
Escrow Escrow -                            -                          -                          -                          
Accounts payable Checking -                            -                          -                          -                          
Payroll Checking -                            -                          -                          -                          
Repurchase agreement Repurchase agreement 4,290,198           -                          -                          4,290,198         
Auxiliary Checking 163,724              -                          -                          163,724            
Credit card account Money market -                            12,806               -                          12,806               
Foundation Checking 178,564              -                          -                          178,564            
Total amount of deposits in bank 4,639,118           12,806               -                          4,651,924         
Less:  FDIC coverage (250,000)             (12,806)             -                          (262,806)           
Total uninsured public funds 4,389,118           -                          -                          4,389,118         

50% collateral requirements 49,460                -                          -                          49,460               
102% collateral requirements 4,376,002           -                          -                          4,376,002         
  Subtotal collateral requirements 4,425,462           -                          -                          4,425,462         
Pledged securities 4,558,993           -                          -                          4,558,993         

Over collateralized 133,531$            -$                        -$                        133,531$          

Bank balance 4,639,118$        12,806$            -$                        4,651,924$       
Outstanding items - College (264,668)             -                          -                          (264,668)           
Outstanding items - Foundation (25,455)               -                          -                          (25,455)             
Deposits in transit - College 33,399                264                    -                          33,663               
Deposits in transit - Foundation -                            -                          -                          -                          
Plus:  petty cash 8,500                   -                          -                          8,500                 

Book balance 4,390,894$        13,070$            -$                        4,403,964$       

College - Business-Type Activities 4,212,516$        13,070$            -$                        4,225,586$       
College - Agency fund 25,268                -                          -                          25,268               
Foundation 153,110              -                          -                          153,110            

4,390,894$        13,070$            -$                        4,403,964$       

Note 1:  Total collateral is pledged against both the College and Foundation.  Collateral is not segregated between the two entities.

Note 2:  The checking accounts at New Mexico Bank & Trust are non-interest bearing accounts.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

 Reconciled 
Type Balance Per Balance Per

of Account Statement Books
 

Investments - College
  New MexiGROW External Investment Pool 5,484,850$         5,484,850$         

Investments - Foundation
State Investment Council External Investment Pool 3,267,895$         3,267,895$         

Account Name
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED COLLATERAL
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

Fair Name and 
Name of CUSIP Market Location of

Depository Description Maturity Number Value Safe Keeper
   

New Mexico Bank Suntrust Bank
   and Trust SCRT 2018-3 HA 8/25/2057 35563PGB9 178,792$           Atlanta, GA
New Mexico Bank FNMA Pool Heartland Bank
   and Trust BM5203 12/1/2048 3140J9X97 1,405,271          Dubuque, Iowa
New Mexico Bank FNMA Pool Heartland Bank
   and Trust AD0249 4/1/2037 31418MH39 374,808             Dubuque, Iowa
New Mexico Bank FNMA Pool Heartland Bank
   and Trust AD0570 8/1/2037 31418MT44 277,366             Dubuque, Iowa
New Mexico Bank GNMA Heartland Bank
   and Trust GNR-2018 H09 FE 6/20/2068 38380LEZ2 2,322,456          Dubuque, Iowa

      Total collateral pledged 4,558,693$        
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The College is a member of a purchasing cooperative formed with the approval of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration.  All public education institutions in the State of New Mexico are eligible to be members
of the cooperative.  The College has no equity or other financial interest in the cooperative except to the extent
it makes purchases through the Cooperative.

Participants All school districts, Clovis Community College, 
Luna Community College, San Juan College

Party responsible for operations N/A

Description To make purchases through the cooperative at a discount

Beginning and ending dates 12/18/84

Total estimated cost N/A

Amount contributed in the 
current year None

Audit responsibility N/A

Fiscal agent N/A

Agency where the entity reports N/A
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
AGENCY FUND
JUNE 30, 2019 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 27,862$            11,289$            (13,883)$           25,268$            

 
LIABILITIES

Due to student organizations 27,862$            11,289$            (13,883)$           25,268$            
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL OUTLAY APPROPRIATIONS
JUNE 30, 2019

Source of Original Appropriation Expenditures Outstanding Unencumbered
Project # Description Funding Appropriation Period to Date Encumbrances Balances
15-0960 Demolish Barracks, Asbestos abatement STB 400,000$         9/8/2015 - 6/30/2019 278,248$           -$                       121,752$               
A5119 CCC HVAC Upgrade GOB 17 2,000,000        8/1/2017 - 6/30/2021 2,000,000          -                          -                               
A5112 Academic Library Resource Acquistions GOB 17 26,125              8/1/2017 - 6/30/2021 26,125               -                          -                               

2,426,125$      2,304,373$       -$                       121,752$               
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College 
Clovis, New Mexico and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Clovis Community College (the 
College) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements and the budgetary comparisons of the College, 
presented as supplementary information, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.   
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To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Jaramillo Accounting Group LLC (JAG) 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
October 29, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 

To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College 
Clovis, New Mexico and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Programs 
 
We have audited Clovis Community College’s (the College) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the 
College's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019. The College's major federal program is 
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the College’s major federal program based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States and the Audit Requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 
Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s compliance. 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Clovis Community College and 
Mr. Brian Colón, Esq. 
New Mexico State Auditor 
 
Opinion on the Major Federal Programs 
 
In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. 
 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the College's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control 
over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on 
a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material non-
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not yet been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Jaramillo Accounting Group LLC (JAG) 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
October 29, 2019 



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Federal Passed 
CFDA Pass-through Through to Federal

Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

US Department of Education
Direct:

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A -$                         55,000$                
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A -                           49,138                  
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A -                           3,921,351             
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A -                           671,309                

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster -                           4,696,798             

NON-MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Direct:
Higher Education Institutional Aid 84.031S  N/A -                           787,054                

Total US Department of Education -                           5,483,852             

US Department of Education
Direct:

TRIO Cluster
Student Support Services 84.042A N/A -                           269,069                
Upward Bound 84.047A N/A -                           270,838                

Total TRIO Cluster -                           539,907                

Pass-through from NM Higher Education Department:
Adult Basic Education 84.002 160032 -                           101,751                

Pass-through from NM Department of Education:
Carl Perkins 84.048 160031-15B, 16A -                           115,957                

Total US Department of Education -                           757,615                

US Small Business Administration
Direct:

Small Business Development 59.037 N/A -                           37,241                  

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES -$                         6,278,708$          

Federal Grantor or Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards. 52



 

53 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal award activity 
of Clovis Community College (College) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 
2019.   The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion 
of the operations of the College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position or changes in 
financial position of the College. 
 
NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, which is the same basis 
as was used to prepare the financial statements.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. 
 
NOTE 3. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 
The College administers the Federal Direct Student Loan Program.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, 
the College processed $671,309 of new loans under the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. 
 
NOTE 4. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The College maintains a negotiated indirect cost rate through the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services. The current negotiated rate is 55% and is under review for renewal.  The only two federal programs 
currently utilizing indirect cost reimbursement are the TRIO-Student Support Services and TRIO-Upward Bound 
programs which are limited to an 8% indirect cost reimbursement. 
 
NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS 
 
The College did not pass through federal funds to any subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
NOTE 6. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
The College did not receive any non-cash assistance during the year ended June 30, 2019. 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
 
2018-001  Check Fraud       Resolved 
 
2018-002  Segregation of Duties over the Cash Receipts Process  Resolved  
 
2018-003  Student Financial Assistance – Enrollment Reporting  Resolved 
 
2018-004  Release of Restrictions on Endowments    Resolved   
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements: 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued:     Unmodified   
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

 Material weakness (es) identified?    yes       X     no 
 Significant deficiency (ies) identified?            yes       X     none reported 
 Non-compliance material to financial 

  statements noted?    yes       X     no 
 
Federal Awards: 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 

 Material weakness (es) identified?            yes       X     no 
 Significant deficiency (ies) identified?        _    _ yes       X     none reported 

 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance  

for major programs:      Unmodified  
 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
  required to be reported in accordance 
  with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)?             yes       X      no 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
                      CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
  

84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268   Student Financial Assistance Cluster  
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
  between type A and type B programs:              $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?        X   yes     _       no 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
NONE 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS 
 
NONE 
 



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CLOVIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

EXIT CONFERENCE 
JUNE 30, 2019 
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The contents of this report were discussed in an exit conference held on October 29, 2019, with the following in 
attendance: 
 
Representing Clovis Community College: 
 
Ms. Lora Harlan, Member, Board of Trustees  
Dr. Robin Kuykendall, Interim President 
Dr. Adrien Bennings, Vice President for Administration and Finance 
Mr. Norman Kia, Vice President for IT and Operations 
Ms. April Chavez, Director of Financial Aid 
Ms. Regina Dart, Director of Human Resource Services (incoming) 
Ms. Gay Goettsch, Director of Human Resource Services (current) 
 
Representing Clovis Community College Foundation: 
 
Dr. Robin Kuykendall, Interim President of the College 
Mr. Jeremy Lusk, Member, Board of Directors 
Ms. Christina Tatum, Member, Board of Directors 
 
Representing Jaramillo Accounting Group LLC (JAG): 
 
Scott Eliason, CPA, Partner  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jaramillo Accounting Group LLC (JAG) assisted in the preparation of the financial statements presented in this 
report. The College’s management has reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes and 
they believe that their records adequately support the financial statements. 
 


